
Please ask for  Democratic Services: Telephone (01362) 656295
e-mail: democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

Website: www.breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee - CABINET
Date & Time - MONDAY, 13TH JANUARY, 2020 AT 9.30 

AM

Venue - NORFOLK & DEREHAM ROOMS, THE 
CONFERENCE SUITE, ELIZABETH 
HOUSE, DEREHAM

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least 
two working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is 

available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.

The Cabinet

Mr S. H. Chapman-Allen (Chairman)
Mr P.D. Claussen (Vice-Chairman)
Mr S.G. Bambridge
Mr J.P. Cowen

Mr P.J. Hewett
Mr M. S. Robinson
Mr I. Sherwood
Mrs A. M. Webb

This meeting may be filmed, recorded or photographed by the public; however, 
anyone who wishes to do so must inform the Chairman and ensure it is done in a 
non-disruptive and public manner. Please review the Council’s guidance on 
filming and recording meetings available in the meeting room.

Democratic Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE

Date: Thursday, 2 January 2020

Public Document Pack

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk




Cabinet
13 January 2020

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES 5 - 11
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2019.

2. APOLOGIES 
To receive apologies for absence.  

3. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business, pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire 
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member has 
a disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 
2011.  Members are also required to withdraw from the meeting room as 
stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 
To note the names of any non-members who wish to address the meeting.

6. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) 

7. BRECKLAND COMMUNITY FUNDING APPLICATIONS (STANDING 
ITEM) 
To consider the grants put forward (if any).  

8. CHARGES FOR PRE-APPLICATION PLANNING ENQUIRIES 12 - 15
Report of Executive Member for Planning, Councillor Gordon Bambridge.

9. EASEMENT VALUATION AT STANFIELD HOUSE, SWAFFHAM 16 - 21
Report of Executive Member for Contracts & Assets, Councillor Paul 
Hewett.

10. QUARTER 2 2019-20 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 22 - 44
Report of Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Governance, Councillor 
Paul Claussen.

11. REVIEW OF THE LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 
(LCTRS) FOR 2020-21 

45 - 49

Report of Executive Member for Finance and Growth, Councillor Phil 
Cowen.



Cabinet
13 January 2020

Page(s)
herewith

12. ANGLIA REVENUES AND BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP 50 - 56
To note the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2019. 

13. NEXT MEETING 
To note that the date of the next meeting of Cabinet will be held on Monday 
3 February at 10.00am, in Dereham Meeting Point, 4 St Withburga Lane, 
Dereham NR19 1ED.

There will be an opportunity for the members of the public to ask questions 
of Cabinet members from 9.30am to 10:00am.



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

CABINET

Held on Friday, 6 December 2019 at 12.00 pm in
Norfolk & Dereham Rooms, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham

PRESENT
Mr S. H. Chapman-Allen 
(Chairman)
Mr P.D. Claussen (Vice-
Chairman)
Mr S.G. Bambridge
Mr P.J. Hewett

Mr M. S. Robinson
Mr I. Sherwood
Mrs A. M. Webb

Also Present
Mr T. J. Jermy
Mr K. Martin
Mr D. Wickerson
Mr T. Birt
Miss H. Bushell
Mrs H, Crane
Mrs V. Dale
Mr R.W. Duffield
Mr F. Eagle

Mr M. Kiddle-Morris
Mr R.G. Kybird
Mrs L.H. Monument
Mr P. Morton
Mr J.W. Nunn
Mr D. R. R. Oliver
Mrs L.S. Turner
Mr R. Atterwill

In Attendance
Maxine O'Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy & Governance 

(Monitoring Officer)
Christine Marshall - Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 

Officer)
Riana Rudland - Breckland Place Manager
Mark Stinson - Executive Manager Governance (Deputy 

Monitoring Officer)
Rob Walker - Executive Director Place
Andrew D'Arcy - Planning Policy Manager
Julie Britton - Democratic Services Officer

Action By

98/19 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2019 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

99/19 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2) 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Phil Cowen, the 
Executive Member for Finance & Growth.

100/19 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 3) 

None.

5

Agenda Item 1



Cabinet
6 December 2019

2

Action By

101/19 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS (AGENDA ITEM 4) 

None declared.

102/19 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 
5) 

Councillors Atterwill, Birt, Bushell, Crane, Dale, Duffield, Eagle, Jermy, 
Kiddle-Morris, Kybird, K Martin, Monument, Morton, Nunn, Oliver, Turner and 
Wickerson.

103/19 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) (AGENDA ITEM 6) 

None.

104/19 BRECKLAND COMMUNITY FUNDING APPLICATIONS (STANDING 
ITEM) (AGENDA ITEM 7) 

None.

105/19 DRAFT BUDGET SETTING, MEDIUM TERM PLAN AND CAPITAL 
STRATEGY (AGENDA ITEM 8) 

The Executive Director for Commercialisation & S151 Officer provided 
Members with a detailed overview of the report.  This draft budget 
accommodated the latest known position; however, there remained estimates 
where final figures were not yet known, such as the Government Settlement 
that would not be announced until January 2020.

Referring to section 1.6 of the report, Members were informed that the Fair 
Funding Review and 75% Business Rates Retention scheme would see 
unprecedented levels of change for Local Government from 1 April 2021 but 
there was currently little information in order to aid budget estimates.

In terms of revenue, the budget approved by Full Council in February 2019 
provided a balanced budget over the medium term, supported by the 
Transformation programme. Since this time, additional cost pressures and 
approved growth had been identified, along with additional income and 
service budgets that have been refreshed to produce this draft budget.

Details were the provided on the draft Capital Programme which included a 
budget for the purchase of waste contract vehicles and equipment of £5m 
that would be repaid through revenue over 8 years.

It was noted that the draft budget would be available on the website for 
customers to view and provide feedback through to 31 December 2019.  The 
final budget would then be presented to Cabinet and Full Council in February 
2020.

A question was then asked about the amount each Council would receive for 
a Band D property.  Members were informed that the Parish precepts were 
still awaited and an analysis would be provided after the meeting.

Councillor Hewett, the Executive Member for Contracts & Assets had 

6



Cabinet
6 December 2019

3

Action By

observed that even in these uncertain times the Council’s medium term 
outlook was very positive.

Reasons 

To comply with budgetary and policy framework and allow consultation with 
Members.

Options

That the draft capital and revenue budget estimates, the draft medium term 
financial plan and the draft capital strategy be reviewed.

RESOLVED that the draft capital and revenue budget estimates, the draft 
medium term financial plan and the draft capital strategy be reviewed, in 
preparation for the final budget setting in February 2020.

106/19 QUARTER 2 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2019-20 (AGENDA 
ITEM 9) 

The Executive Director for Commercialisation & S151 Officer presented the 
report.

The report provided information on the forecast full year financial position of 
the Council as at 30 September 2019.

The full year out-turn based on current projections and assumptions was 
forecasted above budget spend of £777k (5.8%) at the year end.

There were many smaller variances this quarter and these had been 
highlighted in the appendix attached to the report.  The higher value 
variances had been identified at section 1.2 of the report which included 
Housing Benefit Subsidy costs £288K above budget due to the significant 
increase in demand for temporary accommodation.

The capital forecast out-turn was also highlighted (section 1.3 of the report)

Councillor Bambridge, the Executive Member for Planning referred to the 
Housing Service budget which he felt was very difficult to predict.  The 
Housing Service had seen a significant increase in demand but the Council 
was taking steps to provide its own housing to relieve homelessness which in 
turn would relieve the burden.

Reasons for Recommendation

To provide timely information to Members on the overall financial position of 
the Council, enabling resource re-allocation to priorities where necessary.

Options

1. That the report and appendix be noted and that Cabinet Recommend 
to Full Council that funding of up to £500,000 be released from the 
Revenues and Benefits Reserve to cover the expected above budget 
spend in the Housing Service for this financial year.

7



Cabinet
6 December 2019

4

Action By

2. That the report and appendix be noted, but no funding is released to 
cover the expected above budget spend (this would result in the 
General Fund balance falling below the minimum required balance of 
£2.5m).

3. Do nothing.

RESOLVED that the report and appendix be noted.

RECOMMEND to FULL COUNCIL that funding of up to £500,000 be 
released from the Revenues and Benefits Reserve to cover the expected 
above budget spend in the Housing Service for this financial year.

107/19 SWANTON MORLEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN - MAKING (ADOPTION) 
OF THE SWANTON MORLEY NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN (AGENDA ITEM 
10) 

The Leader, Councillor Sam Chapman-Allen was pleased that both Ward 
Representatives for Swanton Morley were in attendance. 

Councillor Bambridge, the Executive Member for Planning had great pleasure 
in presenting the Swanton Morley Neighbourhood Plan and thanked the 
Parish Council and all Officers involved in its preparation.

On behalf of the Parish Council, Councillor Atterwill, also thanked the Officers 
who had assisted in the production of the Plan.

Members echoed the aforementioned comments and congratulated Swanton 
Morley Parish Council for a great achievement.

Reasons:

It was recommended that Members endorse Option 1 as there was a positive 
vote in favour of making the Swanton Morley Neighbourhood Plan through a 
Referendum and there was considered to be compliance, rather than being 
incompatibility, with European obligations and Human Rights conventions.

Options:

1) Council agrees to “make” the Swanton Morley Neighbourhood Plan 
and is “made” as part of the statutory Development Plan for Breckland 
Council, as required by paragraph (4)(a) of section 38A of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as “…more than half of 
those voting to have voted in favour of the plan …”, and to undertake 
the required publication, advise the Parish Council and other 
prescribed persons and subsequently update the district policies map. 

2) Council does not make the Swanton Morley Neighbourhood Plan 
where “…it considers that the Plan would breach, or would otherwise 
be incompatible with any EU obligation or any of the Convention 
Rights (within the meaning of the Human Rights Act 1998).”

RESOLVED that:

1) the Swanton Morley Neighbourhood Plan, as written at the time of the 

8



Cabinet
6 December 2019

5

Action By

referendum, is “made” as part of the statutory Development Plan for 
Breckland Council, as required by paragraph (4)(a) of Section 38A  of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (Option 1);

2) the decision be published as required by paragraph (9) of Section 38A 
of the 2004 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act;

3) Swanton Morley Parish Council and any other prescribed persons be 
advised about this, to meet the requirements of paragraph (10) of 
Section 38A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

RECOMMEND to FULL COUNCIL that the Breckland District Policies map 
be amended to meet the requirements of paragraph 9 of the Town and 
Country (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

108/19 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 11) 

The arrangements for the next meeting on 13 January 2020 at 9.30am in the 
Norfolk room were noted.

109/19 WASTE AND RELATED SERVICES CONTRACT (AGENDA ITEM 12) 

Councillor Paul Hewett, the Executive Member for Contracts & Assets was 
pleased to present this significant contract to the Cabinet.  If Members were 
minded to approve the recommendations, the contract would generate 
excellent benefits for all Councils.

Rob Walker, the Executive Director for Place echoed the aforementioned 
comments.  

It was noted that, if approved, the second recommendation would be 
amended to include the Executive Member for Finance & Growth. 

The Executive Director of Place thanked Riana Rudland, the Breckland Place 
Manager, Sarah Simpson, the Contract and Compliance Team Leader and 
the Officers involved at the two partner authorities for all their hard work.

The inter-authority agreement had been circulated to Members for 
information. After a short presentation it was

RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Act. 

After the press and public had been excluded from the meeting, Members 
were provided with a detailed overview of the whole process and it was 
recommended that the contract be awarded to Bidder B, subject to formal 
contract and satisfactory conclusion of the statutory stand still period.

Reasons

1. Bidder B offers the most economically and advantageous tender.

9



Cabinet
6 December 2019

6

Action By

2. Award of this contract will ensure the Council continues to meet its 
statutory duty.

3. Award of this contract allows for compliance with the IAA.

4. Breckland’s current contract expires in April 2021, and therefore 
procurement needs to be completed ahead of this date to allow for 
mobilisation.

5. Award of this contract provides for delivery of all core waste and 
related services at the same or enhanced levels as currently provided.

6. Award of this contract allows the 3 Authorities to benefit from 
efficiencies of scale working with other Councils.

7. Details regarding the outcome of the assessment of the bids was set 
out in confidential Appendix A to the report to Cabinet.

Options

1. Approve the recommendation to award the contract for the provision 
of waste and related services to Bidder B as the most economically 
advantageous bid, subject to formal contract and satisfactory 
conclusion of the statutory standstill time.

2. Approve the recommendation to award the contract for the provision 
of waste and related services to Bidder B as the most economically 
advantageous bid and implement costed food waste option.

3. Approve the recommendation to award the contract for the provision 
of waste and related services to Bidder B as the most economically 
advantageous bid and do not implement the costed food waste option.

4. Do nothing – this option would result in a breach of the IAA.  
Furthermore, it would result in BDC having to commence its own 
procurement for a new service provider, before the current contract 
expires.

RESOLVED that:

1) the most economically advantageous tender for the contract for the 
provision of waste and related services submitted by Bidder B is 
accepted, subject to formal contract and satisfactory conclusion of the 
statutory standstill time and that the Director of Place is authorised to 
complete and enter into the Contract;

2) delegated authority be granted to the Director of Place in consultation 
with Executive Member for Contracts & Assets and the Executive 
Member for Finance & Growth, to determine when and whether to 
implement provisional items (clinical waste collection and garden 
waste for disposal);

3) implementation of a food waste collection is not approved from the 
service commencement date, but the option to implement this in the 
future following periodic reviews be retained; and

10



Cabinet
6 December 2019

7

Action By

4) the recruitment of a 2 year fixed term Trade Waste Officer funded 
from income derived from the delivery of the commercial waste 
service be supported.

RECOMMEND to FULL COUNCIL that:

5) up to £5,000,000 approved capital budget be released for the 
purchase of vehicles and equipment; and

6) the Council notes the budget implications as set out in Appendix B of 
the report, and the necessary adjustments be made to the Council 
budget, including those derived from the Cabinet decision at 
recommendation 3 above.

The meeting closed at 12.55 pm

CHAIRMAN

11



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Gordon Bambridge – Executive Member for Planning

To: Cabinet 13 January 2020

Author: Simon Wood – Director of Planning and Building Control

Subject: Paid pre-application planning service and charges

Purpose: To agree the introduction of a paid pre-application planning service

Recommendation(s):

1)   That Cabinet agree the introduction of a paid pre-application planning service and the 
inclusion of the fees within the Council’s Fees and Charges Schedule for commencement 
from 1st April 2020.

1.0   BACKGROUND

1.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and specifically Section 93 gives Local Planning 
Authorities discretionary power to charge for services such as pre-application advice.  
Pre-application engagement offers significant potential to improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the planning application system and improve the quality of planning 
applications and their likelihood of success.

1.2 The Peer Review by the Planning Advisory Service carried out in March 2018 indicated 
that a pre-application service, paid for by the applicant, can be cost – effective and reduce 
unnecessary delays through deferral of large applications because the pre-application 
process deals early on with key policy issues. It concludes that this may be an initiative 
that Breckland would find useful.

1.3 Many local planning authorities provide a paid up pre-application service including several 
within Norfolk and Suffolk, including Kings Lynn and West Norfolk, North Norfolk, Norwich, 
West Suffolk and South Norfolk.

1.4 Pre-application engagement is considered to have the following benefits:

 Sets out the context of planning policies and other material considerations;
 Early consideration of issues including planning obligations required;
 Discussion about conditions and other means of mitigation;
 Identifies information to be provided;
 Can initiate a Planning Performance Agreement.

1.5 Whilst the provision of pre-application advice cannot guarantee a grant of planning 
permission as the outcome, it can offer valuable guidance in formulating an application 
and it can assist Applicants in understanding the chances of obtaining planning 
permission and where problems may arise. It is likely to result in a quicker application 
process.

1.6 It is suggested that a sliding scale of charges for pre-application services applicable to 
different types of application be introduced. The level of information necessary for 

12

Agenda Item 8



effective pre-application engagement will vary depending on the scale and nature of the 
proposed development but the intention is to provide comprehensive advice including 
relevant legislation, Government information and planning policies and detailed advice on 
design, layout and other matters for all submissions.

1.7 It is important in providing a paid service that sufficient resources are in place to ensure 
that the service can be carried out effectively and efficiently. At present major pre-
application enquiries are carried out in this manner. It is therefore proposed that this is 
introduced from 1st April 2020.

1.8 Additional capacity will be required for the minor and householder applications. It is 
envisaged that a full-time dedicated officer would need to be brought in to meet the 
demand. This would initially be funded through the Planning Fees uplift reserve and then 
once the service is established the fees generated by the service are expected to cover 
the costs. 

1.9 Once the additional capacity is put in place the service can be expanded to cover minor, 
householders and other applications. 

   Proposed schedule of charges

1.10 Research has been carried out into the charges established by other Local Planning 
Authorities        including those locally in Norfolk. Based on this investigation the following 
fees are proposed:

Application 
Type

Development Description Officer 
Response

Fee (including 
VAT)

Householder Extensions/Alterations Research and 
written letter

£100

Minor 
Applications

1-9 dwellings or up to 999 
square metres of non-
residential

Research, 1 hour 
meeting and 
written letter 

£360

Larger Scale 
Minor 
Applications 
and Smaller 
Scale
Major 
Applications 

10-49 dwellings or between 
1000 and 4999 square 
metres of non-residential

Research, liaison 
with consultees, 1 
hour meeting and 
written letter

£2400 

Major 
Applications of 
Significance

50 dwellings or 5000 
square metres  of non-
residential plus

Planning 
Performance 
Agreement

To be 
negotiated

All site inspections (except for householders) would be charged at an additional £240 per 
hour including VAT. Householder visit would be a flat fee of £50. 

1.11 It must be made clear that pre-application advice provided by a local planning authority 
cannot pre-empt the democratic decision-making process or a particular outcome in the 
event that a formal planning application is made. Central Government does however 
advise that it can be a material consideration to be taken into account and given weight in 
the planning application process.

1.12 It is also important to point out that any views or opinions are given in good faith, without 
prejudice to the formal consideration of any planning application, which will be subject to 

13



public consultation and, potentially, a decision by the Planning Committee. As a result, 
officers cannot give guarantees about a final decision on a planning application.

1.13 However, the written advice is considered when determining future applications, if an 
application is made within three years. The quicker a planning application can be 
submitted after pre-application advice the better, as there can be changes to the physical 
circumstances of the site, the planning status of the surrounding land (by way of a 
separate grant of planning permission) and policies such as through the emergence of a 
new Local Plan. The strength of pre-application advice may therefore be reduced over 
time.   

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the introduction of a paid pre-application planning service be phased in from 1st April 
2020.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To enable the pre-application service to be introduced. 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The introduction of a paid pre-application service will enable the planning service to 
provide detailed advice on planning applications. It will help speed up the planning 
process, enable value to be added to development proposals and provide more certainty 
to applicants.   

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; 
Financial; Staffing. Where the report author considers that there may be implications 
under one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1.1   Constitution & Legal
  The Legal basis for imposing these charges is set out within the report. 

5.2   Contracts
5.2.1   The service will be carried out by Capita as part of the Planning Service Agreement. 

5.3.   Corporate Priorities
5.3.1   The proposal supports the Council’s Priorities.

5.4   Financial
5.4.1   Financial implications are covered within the report.

5.5   Staffing
5.5.1   Staffing details are covered within the report. 

6.0   WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1   All

7.0 ACRONYMS

14



7.1 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Simon Wood – Director of Planning and Building Control
Telephone Number: 01362 656805
Email: simon.wood@breckland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service. 

15



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Paul Hewett – Executive Member for Contracts & Assets 

To: Cabinet – 13 January 2019

Author: Fiona Culshaw – Land Management Officer

Subject: Easement Valuation at Council owned land at Lynn Road, Swaffham

Purpose: To consider granting an Easement and to agree the consideration payable to the 
Council

Recommendation(s):  

1. That, subject to the usual advertising requirements, an easement be granted in over the 
Council’s land at Lynn Road, Swaffham in favour of the applicant.

2. That Cabinet determines whether to require payment at the full value (£24,000) assessed 
by the District Valuer or whether to accept the applicant’s offer of £12,000.

3. That authority to finalise the terms and conditions of the easement and to complete the 
same be delegated to Executive Director Commercialisation in consultation with the 
Executive Member for Contracts and Assets. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 An application has been received for an Easement for drainage under Council owned land 
at Lynn Road, Swaffham. The drainage easement is needed to serve a new development 
of 9 dwellings on the site at Stanfield House, Lynn Road, Swaffham, under planning 
application 3PL/2017/0314/F.    The Council’s land at this location is designated open 
space pursuant to a S106 Agreement.  Any disposal of interest that is agreed to be 
provided, including an easement, would be subject to the normal advertising requirements 
affecting a designated open space.

1.2 The valuation for the Easement fee is £24,000 and was provided by the District Valuer.

1.3 The applicant states that the valuation is high in comparison to an alternative Easement 
route which avoids Breckland Council land.  However this is not comparable to the 
Easement route requested from Breckland Council over its land.  This alternative route 
would be more disruptive as it would involve running the drainage pipe along the adopted 
highway into Highfields Avenue and around the first foul manhole in the adopted highway.  
This would cause major disruption to all residents of Highfields Avenue as the road is 
narrow at that point whilst the drainage works are undertaken. 

1.4 The applicant has in the past supported the Council in providing storage space for 
construction by the Council, providing space for parking of vehicles and the provision of a 
pathway across the applicant’s land adjacent to the Council’s HQ – Elizabeth House 
without a formal right of way.  The applicant has asked for these to be taken into 
consideration.  Officers recognise that these factors have a financial value to the Council 
although Officers are unable to confirm the quantum of this value.  If it is decided that the 
quantum of value for the facts/reasons provided is equal to or in excess of the shortfall 
(£12,000) then the Council is not disposing of this interest at an undervalue and the 

16

Agenda Item 9



following legal advice at 5.1 would not need to be applied.  If it is decided that the 
quantum of value for the facts/reasons provided is less than the shortfall then the legal 
advice at 5.1 should be applied.

 
1.5 The scheme for which the proposed easement relates will provide 9 new dwellings in 

Swaffham including 2 2-bed social rented bungalows.

1.6 The applicant has rejected the Council’s valuation for the easement and has proposed a 
lower fee of £12,000, which they are willing to pay. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Option 1: Agree to grant an easement at a fee of £12,000. 

2.2 Option 2: Refuse to grant an easement at the reduced fee of £12,000 and maintain the 
requirement for a fee of £24,000.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1. In considering the Options members should consider initially whether there is an 
undervalue as outlined in 1.4.  If there is no undervalue because the facts/reasons given 
in 1.4 can be justified to meet the shortfall then the Council is not disposing of this interest 
at an undervalue.  If the fact/reasons do not meet the shortfall in value then the legal 
advice at 5.1 should be applied.  The Council can  under its constitution and adopted 
policy give an interest in land below valuation – however under the General Disposal 
Consent 2003 (see 5.1.) it is for the Council to determine whether the undervalue provides 
an appropriate ‘promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-
being of its area’.  The legal advice at 5.1 confirms this is not the case for this application.  
Members should also consider 5.4.1 regarding setting a precedent in the future for other 
disputes on value.   

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The expected benefits for granting an easement, regardless of the financial value, are:
a. Income from the Easement fee for provision of an interest in land. 
b. Support the development of 9 new homes.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Other. Where the report 
author considers that there may be implications under one or more of these headings, 
these are identified below.

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Legal advice has been sought to reaffrim that legally the Council can dispose of an 
interest below the market value and secondly what the considerations are under the 

17



relevant act for justifying disposal of an interest below value.  The legal advice is as 
follows:

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows district councils to dispose of land 
(which includes the ability to grant easements) in any manner they wish, however such a 
disposal must normally be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable.  This would 
normally be the open market value.  

Secretary of State consent is required for any disposal which is at an undervalue. 
Secretary of State consent has been granted by virtue of the General Disposal Consent 
2003.  This Disposal Consent gives district councils consent to dispose of land (and to 
grant easements over its land) at less than best consideration where the council considers 
that it will help to secure the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of its area.  Any under value must not exceed £2,000,000. 

The legal advice states that the reasons for undervalue for this transaction as outlined in 
this report does not meet the terms of General Disposal Consent 2003 as outlined above 
i.e. that the disposal of this interest undervalue does not secure the promotion or 
improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being if the area.

Government guidance provides that the authority should ensure that it complies with 
normal and prudent commercial practices in deciding whether to dispose at an 
undervaluation, including obtaining the view of a professionally qualified valuer as to the 
likely amount of the undervalue.

Government guidance also requires the authority to consider state aid when considering 
an undervalue disposal.  State aid has been considered by officers who consider that, due 
to the de minimis nature of the undervaluation amount does not constitute state aid. 

 5.1.2 Corporate Asset Management Strategy:  The Council’s Disposal Protocol in its adopted 
Corporate Asset Management Strategy states that ‘The Council will seek to ensure best 
value for all disposals’ and ‘disposals will be at the best price available in the open market 
or ensuring appropriate agreed community returns’.  This is always subject to the act and 
the Council’s constitution.

5.1.1 Constitution: The disposal of an interest in land below a valuer’s option is an executive 
function delegated to Cabinet committee.  It cannot be delegated to a Cabinet member as 
the delegation to a Cabinet member for the disposal of an interest in land includes the 
provision that this should not be less advantageous than a qualified valuer’s valuation.  In 
light of the fact that the applicant has provided reasons to reduce to the Easement fee this 
report is presented to Cabinet committee to confirm the decision of the Council.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

5.2.2 The decision in this report supports the following Corporate Priorities:
Your Place
Our Council

5.3 Financial 

5.3.1 The Valuer has reviewed the applicant’s offer at £12,000.  The Valuer considers this offer is 
too low and maintains the valuation is £24,000.  The Valuer has estimated the value of the 
completed development at £965,000 based on comparable evidence to property sales that 

18



this scheme will provide. The Valuer has also taken into consideration other 
Easement/Wayleaves applications in the area deducing that 2.5% is the comparable 
percentage that is required as an Easement fee.  The assumption from the valuation is  
therefore that the completed scheme value can afford the Easement fee at £24,000.

5.4 Reputation 

5.4.1 In considering this decision members should consider that if a below market value disposal 
of the interest is agreed it is highly likely to set a precedent for future Easements and 
Wayleaves applications in that the Council could leave itself open to further appeals against 
the fees charged.   In a majority of cases the applicant accepts the fee required by the 
Council as this is based on an independent valuation and there are little other additional or 
mitigating factors to consider.  

5.5 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.5.1 Ward Representatives have been consulted.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Swaffham 

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 n/a

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Fiona Culshaw
Telephone Number: 01362 656293
Email: Fiona.culshaw@breckland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

19



PROFORMA B

This PB is valid for 3 
months from PB date

If this PB is not 
longer required 
please advise 
Finance

If there are changes to the original report it may invalidate this document, 
it must be reviewed by Finance.

02/01/2020 Page 1 of 1 D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\5\AI00031581\$4wddp3xm.doc

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE MEMBER APPROVAL FOR THE RELEASE OF 
RESOURCES
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS)

FROM:  Margaret Bailey (Senior Accountant - Capital and Treasury)

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS IN RESPECT OF THE 
ATTACHED REPORT

FROM: Margaret Bailey
REPORT: Lynn Road, Swaffham
REPORT DATE: 25/11/2019

£ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Revenue
Income
006 **** *** 9431 (12,000) (-) (-) (-)
Costs
Description/Code - - - -
Total Revenue (12,000) - - -

Capital
Income
 (-) (-) (-) (-)
Costs
991 **** - - - -
Total Capital - - - -
Considered By: Cabinet 
Date: January 2020

Financial Services Comments
The granting of this wayleave is an operational matter and the income generated will be 
coded to the Land Management service budget.  Income of £12,000 will be credited 
against the rents and wayleaves budget target of £21,400 (of which £17,539.02 has 
been achieved as at 25/11/2019).  Therefore, budgeted income would be exceeded by 
c£8k upon receipt of £12,000.  

Financial Risk
There are no further risks to highlight

20



PROFORMA B

This PB is valid for 3 
months from PB date

If this PB is not 
longer required 
please advise 
Finance

If there are changes to the original report it may invalidate this 
document, it must be reviewed by Finance.

02/01/2020 Page 1 of 1 D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\5\AI00031581\$ckhlmgc2.doc

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE MEMBER APPROVAL FOR THE RELEASE OF 
RESOURCES
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS)

FROM:  Margaret Bailey (Senior Accountant - Capital and Treasury)

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS IN RESPECT OF THE 
ATTACHED REPORT

FROM: Margaret Bailey
REPORT: Lynn Road, Swaffham
REPORT DATE: 25/11/2019

£ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Revenue
Income
006 **** *** 9431 (12,000) (-) (-) (-)
Costs
Description/Code - - - -
Total Revenue (12,000) - - -

Capital
Income
 (-) (-) (-) (-)
Costs
991 **** - - - -
Total Capital - - - -
Considered By: Cabinet 
Date: January 2020

Financial Services Comments
The granting of this wayleave is an operational matter and the income generated will be 
coded to the Land Management service budget.  Income of £12,000 will be credited 
against the rents and wayleaves budget target of £21,400 (of which £17,539.02 has 
been achieved as at 25/11/2019).  Therefore, budgeted income would be exceeded by 
c£8k upon receipt of £12,000.  

Financial Risk
There are no further risks to highlight

21



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Paul Claussen - Deputy Leader & Executive Member for  
Governance

To: Cabinet: 13 January 2020

Author: Ross Bangs – Corporate Innovation, Change and Performance 
Manager

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 2 2019/20 

Purpose: To provide members with an overview of the Council’s performance 
for the period 1st July 2019 – 30th September 2019. 

1. BACKGROUND

The Quarter 2 2019-20 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide 
Members, businesses and residents with an overview of how the Council is performing 
against a number of key strategic indicators. These indicators include the delivery of 
frontline services, financial performance and progress made towards achieving the 
overarching aims an objectives of the Council as set out in the Corporate Plan.   

In addition the covering report will highlight areas of improved and high performance 
and also where performance is challenging. Where this is the case the report will 
summarise what officers are doing to address this.  

1.2 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Recommendation

1)  Members are asked to note the report.

22

Agenda Item 10



1.3 Performance is reported using the RAG system with green demonstrating where an 
indicator is on or above target, amber where the indicator is below target but showing 
an upward trend and red where an indicator is below target. 

Indicator Quarter 2 19/20 Quarter 1 19/20
3 (21.43%) 4 (28.57%)
 4 (28.57%) 2 (14.29%)

7 (50%) 8 (57.14%)

2.0 AREAS OF SUCCESS

2.1 Although a marginal increase in the amount of officer time lost through sickness was 
experienced in Q2, it is positive to note that when compared to the same period 12 
months ago, an overall reduction in time lost is reported which remains below the 
national local authority average. In addition the number of officers leaving the Council 
(7) has reduced in Q2 representing a healthy organisational turnover. 

2.2 The mid-year gross rental income received from the Council’s commercial asset 
portfolio continues to perform strongly with a year-end projection of £2,961,834 against 
a target of £2,805,178. At the end of Q2, 97% of the Council’s total lettable floor space 
was occupied. 

2.3 Response rates relating to complaints and FOIs continue to perform strongly with 98% 
of complaints and 97% of FOIs being responded to within their respective timescales. 
In addition, it is positive to note the significant reduction in the total number of 
complaints being received by the Council when compared with the same period 12 
months ago. (106 Q2 18/19 55 Q2 19/20). 

3.0 AREAS REQUIRING IMPROVEMENT 

3.1     Performance relating to the Customer Contact Centre remains below target with 19.8% 
of the 32,444 calls received being abandoned within Q2. In addition the average wait 
time has increased to 237 seconds for this period. With this said and for context, this 
period has seen the highest number of calls received within the last 12 months, 
representing a 4.1% increase when compared with Q1. In addition, the average call 
time has also increased by 50 seconds as the team increasingly deal with more 
complex issues such as housing and council tax. In consultation with the Executive 
Member for Customer Engagement, work is underway to carry out a detailed analysis 
of the Customer Contact Centre performance with a view of identifying a number of 
remedial recommendations. The newly appointed Shared Customer Experience 
Manager commenced employment in late October. 

3.2      The number of empty properties brought back into use as a result of direct officer 
intervention remains at zero. Within the last quarter a dedicated officer resource has 
been allocated to this area and intelligence activity has been undertaken to identify 
potential properties and property owners which this officer will engage with. It is 
anticipated that there will be an upturn in performance relating to this indicator in 
quarters 3 and 4. 

23



4.0 Additional Points

4.1 None

5.0 Options

5.1 Note the content of the report

5.2 Do nothing

6.0 Expected Benefits

6.1 The Corporate Improvement and Performance Team will use the content of this report 
to identify areas of improvement. 

7.0 Implications 

7.1      Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

7.2   Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of             
the author that there are no implications. 

7.3      Constitutional and Legal

7.4   Constitutional and Legal issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the 
author that there are no implications. 

7.5      Contracts

7.6 Contracts issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 
there are no implications. 

7.7      Wards/Communities affected

7.8 No wards or communities are affected. 

7.9    Acronyms

7.10 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ross Bangs – Corporate Innovation & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 07870835233
Email: ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ross bangs – Corporate Innovation & Performance 

Manager

24

file://bcf01.intranet.breckland.gov.uk/corporate_improvement_performance/Performance/Reports/BDC%20OSC%20Cabinet/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A 
Appendix B

Quarter 1 Performance Report
New Report – How to read guide

25



Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance TeamQ2 Performance Report

Performance Overview
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

B Y  S T A T U S

Red (21.43%)

Amber (28.57%)

Green (50%)

3

4

7

Performing/
Over-

Performing

Below Target
but showing

upward trend
Requiring

Improvement

K E Y  P E R F O R M A N C E
OV E R V I E W

% of complaints responded to in
time- Page 6
Staff turnover- Page 10
Working days lost to sickness per
FTE- Page 10
% of food businesses rated 3 or
above- Page 12
Commercial property gross rental
income- Page 13
% of major planning applications
determined within time- Page 15
% of minor planning applications
determined within time- Page 15

% of calls answered  - Page 1
Average call wait times - Page 1
Empty properties brought back
into use - Page7

P E R F O R M A N C E  B R E A K D O W N  I N D E X

Missed waste collections- Page
3
% of FOIs responded to within
time frame specified - Page 6
EHT&C net income- Page 12
Commercial Property
Occupancy - Page 13

26



Customer Engagement
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance TeamQ2 Performance Report

% OF CALLS
ANSWERED

80.2%
TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 0 %

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q3

25-30%

% OF CALLS ABANDONED

% OF CALLS ABANDONED

% OF CALLS ANSWERED

13.6

86.4

13.7

86.3

11.4

88.6

15.9

84.1

19.8

80.2

0

50

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of calls that are
answered from the total number of
calls taken. A higher % indicates
more calls answered.

FORECASTED
% OF CALLS
ABANDONED

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF CALLS
ANSWERED

86%

NUMBER OF
CALLS
RECEIVED

32,444

AVERAGE WAIT
TIME (IN
SECONDS)

237
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W
1 5 0

Q3

230-270
Seconds

AVERAGE WAIT TIME (IN SECONDS)

AVERAGE WAIT TIME IN SECONDS

189
221

144
179

237

0

50

100

150

200

250

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the average waiting time
for phonecalls. A lower number
indicates less time for the call to be
answered.

FORECASTED AVERAGE
WAIT TIME IN
SECONDS

189
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W
1 5 0

TARGET
AVERAGE WAIT
TIME

150
SECONDS

01
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  s e r v i c e s  w e  p r o v i d e  t o   o u r

r e s i d e n t s  w h o  c o n t a c t  u s  e i t h e r  t h r o u g h  o u r  t r a d i t i o n a l  o r  d i g i t a l

p l a t f o r m s ,  w h i c h  i s  s u p p o r t i n g  o u r  c o r p o r a t e  p r i o r i t y "Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

% of calls answered
Average wait time 
Number of retweets
Social media engagement
Number of website visitors

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -AVERAGE
WAIT TIME (IN
SECONDS)

Page 1

TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 0 %

27



Q2 Performance Report
Prepared by: Change, Innovation and

Performance Team
Page 2

Customer Engagement
continued
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

NUMBER OF
RETWEETS

488

SATISFACTION
WITH SERCO

92%
U p  by  2 %  s i n c e  l a s t
Q u a r t e r

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

49%

NUMBER OF
SOCIAL MEDIA
ENGAGEMENTS

108,780

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

NUMBER OF
WEBSITE VISITORS

71,573
0.8%

TWITTER VS FACEBOOK LIKES (FOLLOWERS)

Twitter Facebook

4,207 4,217 4,411 4,438 4,492

2,562
3,228

3,834
4,353

5,130

Q2 18/19 Q3 18/19 Q4 18/19 Q1 19/20 Q2 19/20
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Total website visits

Total website visits

67,065 63,873

80,980
70,982 71,573

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

10000
20000
30000
40000
50000
60000
70000
80000
90000

40%

Q2 has again seen a rise in the number of calls
offered and has overtaken Q1, as the highest volume
of calls per quarter in the last 12 months. The council
received 32,444 calls this quarter, which represents
an increase of 4.9% compared to Q1. This period
included the highest month of calls in the last 12
months (11,692 calls received in July). July also saw
the highest month in which calls were abandoned,
however, this has subsequently fallen in the last two
months. This period has also seen a rise in the
number of web chat contacts the service receives,
which has reduced the number of staff available to
answer phone calls.

These phone calls have also increased in terms of
individual talk time. This increase is around 50
seconds more than calls received in 2017/18. The
service has attributed this increase in time with staff
signing customers up for 'Connect & Serve', which
has to be done at the customer's pace. Furthermore,
calls with vulnerable customers have also increased,
mainly involving complex topics such as Housing or
Council Tax.

The service has begun, to look at customer insight
and feedback options alongside the CIP team to
understand if current wait times are an issue for
residents, whilst an action plan continues to be
worked through to help lower the current
abandonment level rate. The council has so far
received no formal complaints with regards to the
abandonment of calls or wait time from residents
during this period.

Historic data analysis suggests that Q3 will see a
drop in the number of calls received by the council,
so it is anticipated that both the abandonment rate
and wait time will improve during this period.

Across Q2, the council has seen a significant rise in
the use of social media engagement suggesting that
customers continue to migrate towards digital
solutions when contacting the council.

28



Environmental and
Community
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

NUMBER OF
MISSED WASTE
COLLECTIONS

26
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W
2 5

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q3

18-24

MISSED WASTE COLLECTION LAST 4 QUARTERS

MISSED COLLECTIONS

19

13

29
25 26

0

10

20

30

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the number
of missed collections per 100,000
people, a lower number is better for
this indicator as we look to ensure
fewer waste collections are missed

FORECASTED 
NUMBER OF
MISSED
WASTE
COLLECTIONS

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -NUMBER OF
MISSED WASTE
COLLECTIONS

19
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W
2 5

% OF
SUCCESSFUL
COLLECTIONS
WITHIN THE
DISTRICT

99.8%

NUMBER OF
INCIDENTS OF
FLY-TIPPING

285

Q3

230-250

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number of incidents
of fly tipping. A lower number is
better for this indicator, as this
ensures fewer fly-tipping incidents
are happening within the district.

FORECASTED NUMBER
OF INCIDENTS OF FLY
TIPPING

262

TOTAL
NUMBER OF
FLY TIPS THIS
YEAR

600

02
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  s e r v i c e s  w e  p r o v i d e  t o  t h e

d i s t r i c t s  c o m m u n i t y  a n d  e n v i r o n m e n t ,  w h i c h  i s  s u p p o r t i n g  o u r

c o r p o r a t e  p r i o r i t y "Your Place"
How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

Number of bins collected vs number of bins missed
Number of incidents of fly-tipping
% of household waste recycled or composted
Average number of working days to deal with missed waste
Number of garden waste subscribers
Breckland Lottery (value awarded)

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -NUMBER OF
WORKING DAYS TO
DEAL WITH FLY
TIPPING

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 3

FLY TIPPING INCIDENTS LAST 4 QUARTERS

FLY TIPS REPORTED

253

362
315

285

0

100

200

300

400

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

29



Environmental and
Community continued
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

NUMBER OF
INCIDENTS OF
FLY-TIPPING

285
SATISFACTION
WITH SERCO

92%
U p  by  2 %  s i n c e  l a s t
Q u a r t e r

FLY TIPPING INCIDENTS LAST 4 QUARTERS

FLY TIPS REPORTED

262 253

362

315
285

0

100

200

300

400

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

10%

In both July and August, Serco
experienced delays in completing their
waste collection rounds, resulting in a
deduction being made to their
performance-based pay. These delays
resulted in households not receiving bin
collections until a day later than
scheduled. The subsequent
implementation of an action plan has
seen a significant reduction in the
number of missed bins being reported.
As a result, the indicator is still  below
target but due to the level of
improvement seen as a result of the
action plan, it is anticipated that next
quarters performance will be below
target. The service will continue to
monitor this, to ensure that missed bin
levels remain low.

There has also been a drop in the number
of incidents of fly-tipping reported in
Q2, although this is still  slightly higher
than Q2 18/19.

% OF HOUSEHOLD
WASTE
RECYCLED OR
COMPOSTED

28.42%
1.7%

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

% OF HOUSEHOLD WASTE RECYCLED OR COMPOSTED

RECYCLED (13.17%) COMPOSTED (15.25%)

RESIDUAL (71.58%)

13.17

15.25

71.58

AVERAGE NUMBER
OF WORKING DAYS
TO DEAL WITH
MISSED WASTE

1.2
DAYS

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 4

FLY TIPS REPORTED MONTHLY BREAKDOWN

FLY TIPS REPORTED

130
110

75
84

98 103

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP
0

50

100

150

A V E R A G E  N U M B E R  O F  F L Y  T I P P I N G
I N C I D E N T S  R E P O R T E D  F O R  E A S T  O F
E N G L A N D  L O C A L  A U T H O R I T I E S

30



Environmental and
Community continued
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

NUMBER OF
GARDEN WASTE
SUBSCRIBERS

21,880

NUMBER OF GARDEN WASTE SUBSCRIBERS

GARDEN WASTE SUBSCRIBERS

20,933 21,017 21,025 21,351 21,880

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

2.4%

BRECKLAND
LOTTERY (VALUE
AWARDED)

£11,332
17%

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

BRECKLAND LOTTERY VALUE

VALUE AWARDED

14,799

22,918

10,709 9,671 11,332

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

S TA T I S T I C S

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 5

Revenue
generated
since launch
(March 18)

£81,068
# of new

lottery
players since

Q4

170

Garden Waste subscribers continue to
increase, with Q2 seeing an increase of
2.4% with a total of 21,880 subscribers.
This is in comparison to the 20,930
subscribers from Q2 18/19 and 21,025
subscribers from Q4 2018/19. As
forecast,  Q2 has seen an increase in
subscribers and it is anticipated that the
number of subscribers will  continue to
grow during the next quarter.

£11,332 has been raised for good causes
over Q2 of 2019/20. Current Annualised
projections for 'Good Cause' funds
raised by the lottery stand at £48,640.
£81,068 in revenue has been generated
to date since the lottery launched in
March 2018, with £52,416.60 of that
income going to Community
Organisations and Charitable 'Good
Causes'.  The Lottery has continued to
grow since Q1 in both ticket numbers
(310 new monthly tickets) and new
players (an increase of 170 players).

Broadland District Council Kings Lynn and West Norfolk..

Norfolk County Council South Norfolk Council North Norfolk District Co..

Breckland Council Norwich City Council Great Yarmouth Borough Co..

0

10

20

30

40

50

% sent for reuse, recycling or composting

B e n c h m a r k i n g -   P e r c e n t a g e  o f  h o u s e h o l d  w a s t e  s e n t
f o r  r e u s e ,  r e c y c l i n g  o r  c o m p o s t i n g -  B r e c k l a n d  1 7 - 1 8

855

NUMBER OF
SUBSCRIBERS
GAINED SINCE
Q431



Information and
Feedback
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

% OF FOI'S
RESPONDED TO
IN TIME

97%
TA RG E T  I S  1 0 0

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q2

97-100%

% OF FOI'S RESPONDED TO IN TIME

RESPONSES TO WITHIN TIMELIMIT

84 86
93 95 97

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of FOI's responded to
within the statutory 20 day
timescale.

FORECASTED
% OF FOI'S
RESPONDED
TO IN TIME

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF FOI'S
RESPONDED TO IN
TIME

84%
TA RG E T  I S  1 0 0

# OF FOIS DUE
RESPONSE

74

% OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED TO
IN TIME

98%
TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 0 %

Q2

97-100%

% OF COMPLAINTS RESPONDED TO IN TIME

RESPONDED TO WITHIN TIMESCALE

82
89 94 93 98

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number on the % of
complaints responded to within the
agreed timescale. The standard
timescale for a response in 15
working days unless an agreement
for an extension is made.

FORECASTED % OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED TO IN
TIME

82% 55

03
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  s e r v i c e s  w e  p r o v i d e  f o r  t h o s e  w h o

w i s h  t o  s u b m i t  F r e e d o m  o f  I n f o m a t i o n  ( F O I )  r e q u e s t s  o r  c o r p o r a t e

c o m p l a i n t s  t o   u s ,  w h i c h  i s  s u p p o r t i n g  o u r  c o r p o r a t e  p r i o r i t y "Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

% of Freedom of Information Requests (FOI's) responded to in time
% of complaints responded to in time
Number of complaints received
Number of FOI's received
Average response time to complaints

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF
COMPLAINTS
RESPONDED TO IN
TIME

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 6

TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 0 %

# OF
COMPLAINTS
DUE RESPONSE

32



Information and
Feedback continued
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

NUMBER OF
COMPLAINTS
RECEIVED

55

SATISFACTION
WITH SERCO

92%
U p  by  2 %  s i n c e  l a s t
Q u a r t e r

NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS CLOSED

COMPLAINTS CLOSED COMPLAINTS UPHELD

98

74

47 45
55

11 15 10 9 13

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

16%

FOI response rates continue to be
high, in comparison, the average % of
FOIs responded to within the time
limit for most local authorities, which
is around 80%. During this quarter
two FOI's were not responded to
within the timescale. The same applies
for complaint response times with
only one complaint not responded to
within 15 days. Of the combined 129
FOI's and complaints received within
this quarter, 97.6% were responded to
within timescale.

NUMBER OF
FOI'S RECEIVED

74
20%

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

AVERAGE
RESPONSE TIME TO
COMPLAINTS

9.2 Days
41%

55
Complaints

 received

74 FOI
request received

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 7

METHOD OF CONTACT FOR COMPLAINTS/FOIS

VIA WEB FORM (57.45%) VIA EMAIL (7.80%)

VIA LETTER (0%) VIA OTHER (34.75%)

NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED

106 100

45 42
55

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

50

100

150

33



Housing and
Homelessness
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

# OF CASES
PREVENTED
FROM
HOMELESSNESS

25

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q2

30-40

NUMBER OF CASES PREVENTED FROM HOMELESSNESS

CASES OF PREVENTION

34

45

31

41

25

0

10

20

30

40

50

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the the
number of cases received where
homelessness has been prevented

FORECASTED #
OF CASES
PREVENTED
FROM
HOMELESSNESS

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -# OF CASES
PREVENTED FROM
HOMELESSNESS

34

NUMBER OF CASES
PREVENTED FROM
HOMELESSNESS
SINCE Q1

66

# OF EMPTY
PROPERTIES
BACK IN USE

0
TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E   2 5

EMPTY PROPERTIES BACK IN USE

PROPERTIES BACK IN USE

61

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number number of
empty properties brought back into
use through direct intervention by
the council. A higher number means
more properties are being brought
back into use.

0

04
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  o u r  h o u s i n g  s e r v i c e s ,  w h i c h

w e  p r o v i d e  t o  o u r  r e s i d e n t s ,  w h i c h  i s  s u p p o r t i n g  o u r  c o r p o r a t e

p r i o r i t y "Your Place"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

Number of cases prevented from homelessness
Number of empty properties back in use
% of Breckland residents who are homeless

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -# OF EMPTY
PROPERTIES BACK
IN USE

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 8

TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E   2 5

34



Housing and
Homelessness continued
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

% OF BRECKLAND
RESIDENTS WHO
ARE HOMELESS

0.12%

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

33%

The need to focus on bringing empty homes
back into use has been identified within the
service and, following on from the peer
review, specific actions have been
identified. 

Resources have been a key issue for
prioritising empty homes in the past,  the
team is now up to full  capacity, and one of
the Private Sector Housing officers is
currently dedicated to addressing the issue
of empty homes. The following actions are
underway; 

1. The team is working to Conduct
intelligence checks on known empty homes
to identify owners and secondary
addresses, 
2.  The team will  Serve relevant notices on
properties and owners secondary address
to ‘flush out responses’,  
3.  Once contact is made, offer support via
applicable grants if  the owner engages, 
4.  On Non-engagement - follow strict
enforcement procedures with a zero
tolerance approach. 

Each officer within the team has been set a
target to bring 5 empty homes back into
use, to review targets once officers are
confident in dealing with such cases. 

Each officer within the team has been set a
target to bring 5 empty homes back into
use, to review targets once officers are
confident in dealing with such cases.

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

# OF BRECKLAND
RESIDENTS WHO
ARE HOMELESS

171
16%

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 9

# OF CASES PREVENTED FROM HOMELESSNESS

NUMBER OF CASES

34

45

31

41

25

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

10

20

30

40

50

End of private rented t.. (30.51%) Domestic abuse (14.24%)

Non-violent relationshi.. (15.93%)

End of social rented tenancy (6.78%)

Eviction from supported.. (4.07%)

End of private rented t.. (1.36%)

Other violence or harrassment (5.08%)

Left institution with n.. (1.36%) Required to leave accom.. (0%)

Other reasons / not known (20.68%)

R E A S O N S  F O R  L O S S  O F  H O M E  I N  B R E C K L A N D -
2 0 1 8 / 1 9  A N A L Y S I S

R e a s o n  f o r  h o u s e h o l d s '  p r e v e n t i o n   a n d  r e l i e f  d u t y
e n d i n g -  B r e c k l a n d  2 0 1 8 / 1 9

Secured accommodation 56 days elapsed Contact lost

Application withdrawn Notice served (refusal to c.. Homeless

Refused to cooperate

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Prevention Duty Relief Duty

35



Employee Workforce
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

STAFF
TURNOVER (%)

2.3
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W
4 . 3

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q3

3.8-4.5%

STAFF TURNOVER (%)

STAFF TURNOVER

5.3
5.8

3.7

5.1

2.3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of staff turnover. This is
calculated by the total number of
leavers against the total number of
staff employed. A lower number
shows successful staff retention

FORECASTED
STAFF
TURNOVER (%)

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -STAFF
TURNOVER (%)

5.3
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W
4 . 3

NUMBER OF
LEAVERS IN THE
PERIOD

7

# OF WORKING
DAYS LOST TO
SICKNESS PER
FTE

1.7
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W  2

Q3

1.6-2.0
DAYS

WORKING DAYS LOST TO SICKNESS PER FTE

DAYS LOST PER FTE

2.2 2.32
1.88

1.63 1.78

0

1

2

3

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the number on the
number of working days lost per
FTE (Full Time Equivalent). A lower
number shows less time lost to
sickness

FORECASTED # OF
WORKING DAYS LOST
TO SICKNESS PER FTE

2.2
TA RG E T  I S  B E LO W  2

TOTAL NUMBER
OF WORKING
DAYS LOST TO
SICKNESS

449

05
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  o u r  o f f e r  t o  c o u n c i l

e m p l o y e e s .  T h i s  r e l a t e s  t o  t h e  c o r p o r a t e  p r i o r i t y "Our Council"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

Staff turnover
Number of working days lost to sickness per FTE (Full Time Equivalent)
Number of leavers
Number of days lost to sickness

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -# OF
WORKING DAYS
LOST TO SICKNESS
PER FTE

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 10

36



Employee Workforce
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

NUMBER OF LEAVERS

# OF LEAVERS

14

17

11

15

7

0

10

20

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

Sickness has risen slightly in the last
quarter, however, based on trends, this is
due to the time of year. Historic sickness
data indicates that September sees a rise
in sickness amongst staff,  which offsets
the relatively low sickness levels seen in
July and August. Based on historical
analysis,  it  should be anticipated that Q4
sickness continues to rise slightly.

Turnover is below target, although this
should offset the high turnover of last
quarter, which was above target. 

NUMBER OF STAFF
WHO HAD SHORT
TERM SICKNESS

85
112%

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

Q2 REASONS FOR LEAVING

Resigning (71.43%) End of contract (14.29%)

Dismissal (14.29%)

5

1

1

13

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 11

NUMBER OF DAYS
LOST TO
SICKNESS

449.2
0.6%

NUMBER OF STAFF
WHO HAD
LONG TERM SICKNESS

79%

NUMBER OF DAYS LOST TO SICKNESS PER FTE

BRECKLAND

2.2 2.3
1.8 1.6 1.7

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

1

2

3

4

5

According to the most
recent Local Government
workforce survey the
average quarterly staff
turnover rate for local
authorities is 3.6%

TOTAL SICKNESS UK
LA AVERAGE (2.1
DAYS PER FTE)

37



Public Protection
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

06
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  o u r  P u b l i c  P r o t e c t i o n

s e r v i c e s .  T h i s  r e l a t e s  t o  t h e  c o r p o r a t e  p r i o r i t y "Your Health and
Wellbeing"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

EHTC (Environmental Health Training & Consultancy) net income 
% of food businesses rated 3 or above
Number of food businesses within the district

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 12

EHTC NET
INCOME (£)

£27,808

Q3

£33-38K

EHTC NET INCOME (£)

NET INCOME

£44,663

£35,000£33,000£32,000
27,808

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the net
income produced by EHTC. The
higher the number the more net
income generated

FORECASTED
EHTC NET
INCOME

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -EHTC NET
INCOME
(£)- CUMULATIVE

NET INCOME
THIS FINANCIAL
YEAR

% OF FOOD
BUSINESSES
RATED 3 OR
ABOVE

97.9%

Q3

98-99%

% OF FOOD BUSINESSES RATED 3 OR ABOVE

% OF FOOD BUSINESSES

97.4 95.5 97.5 98 97.9

60

80

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the percentage of food
business rated 3 (generally
satisfactory) or above within the
district. A higher number means
more businesses are achieving this
standard

FORECASTED % OF
FOOD BUSINESSES
RATED 3 OR ABOVE

97.4%

NUMBER OF
BUSINESSES RATED
3 OR ABOVE

1,140
Out of
1,164

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF FOOD
BUSINESSES RATED 3
OR ABOVE

These indicators highlight the
number of registered food business
present within the district

TOTAL NUMBER OF
FOOD BUSINESSES
REGISTERED WITHIN
THE DISTRICT

% OF FOOD
BUSINESSES
RATED BELOW 3

1,140 2%

TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 5 %

£44,663 £59,808

TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 5 %

TA RG E T  F O R  Q 1 /Q 2
i s  £ 5 9 , 0 0 0

TA RG E T  I S  £ 2 9 , 5 0 0

38



Economic and Growth
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
GROSS RENTAL
INCOME(£)

£1,589,356

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

END OF Q4

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY GROSS RENTAL INCOME

GROSS RENTAL INCOME (£)

1,338,053

2,084,393

2,704,220

841,501

1,589,356

0

1000000

2000000

3000000

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the gross
rental income generated by the
council's commercial property.  A
higher number shows increased
income from our assets.

FORECASTED
COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY GROSS
RENTAL
INCOME(£)

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY GROSS
RENTAL INCOME(£)

£1,388,053

TARGET
INCOME BY END
OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

£2,805,178

COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY

97%
TA RG E T  I S  9 8 %  O R
A B OV E

Q2

97-100%

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OCCUPANCY

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OCCUPANCY

91% 91% 92%
97% 97

60

80

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the % of our commercial
units that are occupied. Target is to
achieve 98% occupancy level of the
Council's commercial property assets
which excludes operational
assets. Calculated by total floor space
let over the total lettable space.

FORECASTED
COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY

91%

TARGET
COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY

98%

07
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  a r e a s  r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  c o u n c i l s

e c o n o m i c  a n d  g r o w t h  s e r v i c e s .  T h i s  r e l a t e s  t o  t h e  c o r p o r a t e

p r i o r i t y "Your Opportunity"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is measured by the
following

Commercial Property gross rental income
New homes delivered
New homes completed
Wage levels
Unemployment levels

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 13

£2,961,834

TA RG E T  I S  9 8 %  O R
A B OV E

COMMERCIAL
PROPERTY
OCCUPANCY
LAST QUARTER

39



Economic and Growth
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

NEW HOMES
COMPLETED IN
17/18 (AS OF 2018
MONITORING
REPORT)

535

SATISFACTION
WITH SERCO

92%
U p  by  2 %  s i n c e  l a s t
Q u a r t e r

P O I N T S  T O  N O T E

Wage levels: Wage levels,  calculated
through gross weekly income, rose in
2018/19 to £498.3 from £452.2 in
2017/18. This accounts for a rise of 9.7%.
The average wage rise for authorities in the
East during this period was 2.6% and
nationally the average rise was 8.9%.
Despite these rises, Breckland remains
below the average wage levels for the East
(£590.3) and Great Britain (£571.1).

Unemployment: In Q2, unemployment
levels rose within Breckland, in comparison
with Q1. This accounted for a 6% increase
in this period. Despite this increase, the %
of the population which are unemployed
remains 1.7%. Breckland remains below the
average unemployment level for both the
East and nationally.

AVERAGE
BRECKLAND WAGE
LEVELS

£25,911

S U P P O R T I N G  D A T A  A N D  A N A L Y S I S

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

UNEMPLOYMENT
LEVELS

1,385
Norfolk avg is
1,594

UNEMPLOYMENT LEVELS (% OF POPULATION)

BRECKLAND EAST OF ENGLAND

GREAT BRITIAIN

1 1
1.2

1.7 1.71.6 1.7
1.5

2.1 2.12.2 2.3
2.1

2.7 2.8

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2
0

1

2

3

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 14

Please note - Under Universal Credit a broader span of
claimants are required to look for work than under
Jobseekers Allowance. As Universal Credit Full Service is
rolled out in particular areas, the number of people
recorded as being on the Claimant Count is therefore
likely to rise.

GROSS WEEKLY PAY

BRECKLAND NATIONAL AVERAGE

460.8 452.2
498.3

647 663 687

16/17 17/18 18/19
2

351

700

Housing completions
breakdown as per

most recent annual
monitoring report

40



PLANNING PROVISION
Q2, 2019 |  Jul  -  Sep

Q2 Performance Report

% OF MA JOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

100%
TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
7 0 %

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Q3

95-100%

% OF MA JOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

% OF MAJOR APPLICATIONS

86

53

76

93
100

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Q2, 2019 
Jul - Sep

The main indicator highlighted in
this section focuses on the
percentage of planning applications
determined within time (13 weeks
or agreed extension). The higher the
number, the more agreed within this
period.

FORECASTED % OF
MA JOR PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED
WITHIN TIME

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF MA JOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

86%

TARGET (%)

70%

% OF MINOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

94.57%

Q2

% OF MINOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

Planning Apps Determined in..

88 84
91 92 94

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

The main indicator in this section
focuses on the percentage of minor
planning applications determined
within time (8 weeks or agreed
extension). The higher the number
the more agreed within this period

FORECASTED % OF
MINOR PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

87.67%

TARGET (%)

80%

08
T h i s  s e c t i o n  c o v e r s  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  a r e a s  r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  c o u n c i l s

p l a n n i n g  s e r v i c e s .  T h i s  r e l a t e s  t o  t h e  c o r p o r a t e  p r i o r i t y"Your Place"

How we are performing as a council in these areas is
measured by the following

% of major planning applications determined within time
% of minor planning applications determined within time

SAME PERIOD LAST
YEAR -% OF MINOR
PLANNING
APPLICATIONS
DETERMINED WITHIN
TIME

Prepared by: Change, Innovation and
Performance Team

Page 15

TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
8 0 %

90-95%
41



Page and Report title

Breakdown of the page
- What Data/PIs are being shown
- Which part of the corporate plan
they link into

Service area of the
council

Reporting Period

Performance
for the last year

Supporting figure which
goes into this performance
measure or works as part of
its calculation

Performance for this time
last year last year

Forecast based on
existing data and
trends as well as any
business intelligence
gathered which can
forecast this figure.

Description of
the Performance
measure, what
good looks like
etc.

Within the new reports there are 8 areas of performance which are
covered, each areas focuses on certain elements of the services we
provide. Each Area of Performance within the new reports is broken
down into two pages, the first page shows the key measures, these
traditional agreed measures are targeted and agreed by all levels of the
organisation to be key indicators of performance for the relevant areas.

Page 1

Quarterly Performance Reports

How to Understand
and what they show

42



Page 2 of each area within the report features different elements of data and
visual analytics which support and highlight performance/delivery within the
areas they represent, this is traditionally where the data only measures will be
featured along with other business intelligence and data provided by different
services and sources of data, this page is designed to add context and provide
more background and related info/analysis where it is useful.

Page 2

Where possible,
benchmark
analysis and
comparison
data to other
local authorities
will be provided
to provide the
audience with
an idea of how
our
performance
compares

Where relevant,
further context and
information will be
provided by the
report authors in
relation to key
performance and any
other areas to
highlight, this will
often be the case
where an area is
under performing
and further
explanation of this is
needed, or where an
area is performing
well and should also
be highlighted along
with any additional
points to note on
work that has been
undertaken or any
other key risks/issues
that need raising.

Data only
measures are
Performance
indicators that
whilst
informative and
useful do not
have an agreed
target and are
therefore still
monitored but
not highlighted
as "Key
Indicators"

43



% OF CALLS
ANSWERED

94.96%
TA RG E T  I S  A B OV E
9 1 %

K E Y  I N D I C A T O R S

Quarterly Performance Reports

How to Understand
and what they show

The below features a breakdown of the key indicators section
within the new performance reports, it will explain the colour
coding and percentage figures

Title of performance
measure highlighted

The colour of the square
represents the status of the
indicator, Green represents
on or above target, orange
represents slightly under
target, red represents
significantly below target
and white indicates this is a
data only measure and does
not have a target.

The figure is the current target
of this measure

This figure represents the change since last
quarter, the arrow represents in which
direction the figure has moved since last
quarter and if this change has moved in a
higher or lower direction.

44



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Phillip Cowen, Executive Member Finance & Growth and 
Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation  

To: Cabinet, 13 January 2020
Full Council, 23 January 2020

Author: Adrian Mills, Strategic Manager ARP Billing and Benefits

Subject: Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Review

Purpose: To review the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2020-21

Recommend to FULL COUNCIL:

1) That the Council retain the 8.5% benefit scheme (i.e. the maximum benefit to working age 
claimants is 91.5%) and

2) That the Council introduces a tolerance rule to the treatment of Universal Credit income in the 
Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Each year the Council is required to review its Local Council Tax Reduction Support 
Scheme (LCTRS). This report advises Committee about the findings of the 2019 annual 
review, the consultation on these findings and the resultant proposals for the LCTRS 
scheme to take effect from 1 April 2020.  

Councils are required to consider whether to review their LCTRS schemes annually. 
Where it is determined to retain the existing scheme for the forthcoming year this must be 
decided by 11 March.  Where Councils seek to amend their scheme it will be necessary to 
consult preceptors and stakeholders along with a consultation to inform a final scheme 
design by 28 February.

Full details to the background of this scheme and the Council’s current scheme were 
presented to Cabinet on the 25 June 2019 as detailed in the following paragraphs.

1.2 Claims dependent upon Universal Credit (UC) have become increasingly apparent since 
the Council entered the UC full service during summer 2018, whereby the significant 
majority of new claims now go through UC and are received by the ARP through the 
Universal Credit Data Sharing hub (UCDS).

UC is designed to be paid monthly, calculated on the customer’s circumstances, including 
Real Time Information (RTI) earnings data from HMRC every month. Given customer’s 
circumstances, especially earnings, fluctuate, this leads to monthly revised UC awards 
sent to the Council by the DWP.

The existing Council Tax Support scheme rules require the Council to revise awards when 
a customer’s Universal Credit changes leading to reassessment of Council Tax Support. 
In turn this means customers receive a revised Council Tax bill for balance due for the 
year and have to amend their payment arrangements, typically direct debit instructions. 
Increasingly, this can be a monthly occurrence for customers.

45

Agenda Item 11



1.3 We have seen an increase in customer contact regarding these notifications because 
customers are unsure as to what they have to pay due to the requirement to re-profile 
their Council Tax payments on receipt of UCDS files on a monthly basis. The uncertainty 
caused toward the customer also has an impact on Council Tax collection, as well as 
increased administration costs and postage associated with producing additional 
notification letters.

Within the Anglia Revenues Partnership, Waveney (East Suffolk) has been in the UC Full 
Service the longest, since May 2016, where we have seen a 72% increase in revised UC 
awards sent to the Council. Over time we expect this pattern to continue and increase for 
all the partner Councils, given full service has been rolled out nationally and UC is set to 
expand.

1.4 To ease the burden on the customer, we recommend a tolerance rule is introduced into 
the Council’s scheme. This would have the effect of freezing a customer’s assessment 
when a revised UCDS notification would otherwise trigger a reassessment. UCDS 
changes notified above the tolerance level would be processed as usual, whereas 
changes within the tolerance level would not be updated, no correspondence issued to the 
customer, and without amendment to Council Tax repayments.

We have analysed UCDS award notifications for the past three months. The table below 
shows the level of reduction in reassessments for changes in UC banded in £5 increments 
were a tolerance rule to be applied.

£5 £10 £15 £20 £25
Reduction in re-assessments 14% 21% 32% 32% 36%

1.5 We recommend a weekly tolerance level of £15 (£65 monthly) to achieve a 32% reduction 
in revised Council Tax adjustments. We consider a £10, 21% reduction to be less 
effective, whilst there is little to gain by increasing the tolerance level. Setting the 
tolerance level at £15 equates to less than two hours employment at national minimum 
hourly rates.

A relatively small tolerance level will ensure smoothing of customer’s fluctuating UC 
awards and will not disadvantage those customers receiving greater or occasional 
beneficial changes.

It should be noted where customer’s circumstances noticeably change, for example when 
employment ceases, the tolerance rule will not apply, given the change will be greater 
than £15 per week. In these circumstances the customer’s Council Tax Support will be 
immediately adjusted to provide extra benefit.

1.6 It is also recommended that the changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme include 
discretion to reassess entitlement where a reduction in earnings occurs and it is clear that 
this level of earnings have and will be likely to continue at a lower level.

1.7 In looking at how a tolerance would apply, a typical case would currently have 12 monthly 
reassessments and 12 amended Council Tax bills during the year. However, with a 
tolerance rule a typical customer will only have 4 monthly reassessments and the weekly 
difference in support would be £0.27p per week.

1.8 We are working with our software supplier to introduce additional functionality to enable a 
tolerance rule, along with automation of these assessments.

46



1.9 This paper gained approval to undertake a statutory consultation on the changes being 
proposed and stated that the results of the consultation would be reported back to 
Committee once complete.

1.10 Consultation Exercise
The matters consulted on were:
To introduce a tolerance rule to the treatment of some Universal Credit (UC) monthly 
awards, to provide stability to customers who are having to alter their Council Tax 
repayments.

The consultation commenced Monday 28 October 2019 and concluded on Sunday 8 
December 2019. As the changes proposed were relatively small, a six week consultation 
was considered appropriate.

The Consultation was available on the Council’s and Anglia Revenues Partnership 
websites with, in addition, in an attempt to get as much interest as possible, everyone on 
the Council’s Register of Consultees that had expressed an interest in ‘corporate issues’ 
and the consultees on a list provided by ARP being notified direct where to find the 
consultation document. The consultation was further discussed at a Benefits Stakeholder 
liaison meeting held by the Anglia Revenues Partnership at Thetford on the 7th October 
2019 and a separate letter sent to major Preceptors.

1.11 Consultation Results
Stakeholders at the liaison meeting did not express any concerns with the proposed 
change; we have not received any direct responses.

o Twenty-one individual responses were received to the wider consultation, of whom 
just two respondents receive UC. 

o Fifteen (71%) of the twenty-one responses supported the proposed change, with 
three disagreeing and three not sure. 

o Eleven respondents agreed that a £15 weekly tolerance level would be right, with 10 
disagreeing, suggesting changes should be implemented immediately, as now, or 
based on yearly position. 

o The response to the Council retaining discretion not to apply the tolerance rule, 
when it is discovered a single change had occurred throughout the year, was split 
50/50.

o Sixteen respondents live in the Breckland area.

1.12 Conclusion
The consultation exercise resulted in a positive response to the concept of a tolerance 
rule, albeit some respondents suggested different monetary levels. However, given 71% 
were in approval and that our proposal will smooth the customer impact of monthly UC 
fluctuating awards, as detailed above, Members are asked to recommend to Full Council 
at its meeting planned for the 23 January 2020, to adopt the changes detailed in the 
recommendations.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the Council retain the 8.5% benefit scheme (i.e. the maximum benefit to working age 
claimants is 91.5%) and that the Council introduces a tolerance rule to the treatment of 
Universal Credit income in the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

2.2 Do not make the proposed changes to the LCTRS scheme.

47



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 As required, the Council has completed its annual review of the LCTRS scheme it 
operates and has identified improvements that will both help claimants and the Council 
reduce the amount of administration and improve clarity within the current scheme.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The changes made to the current scheme have worked well – introducing a tolerance rule 
for the treatment of UC awards will reduce the number of notifications customers receive 
to amend their Council Tax payments, and provide stability for customer repayments 
whilst reducing customer contact.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Data Protection; 
Equality & Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk 
Management; Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Other. 
Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more of 
these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights
5.1.1 The existing LCTRS scheme continues the DWP’s previous Council Tax Benefit scheme 

conventions established over many years, regarding protections for vulnerable groups, 
including children, the disabled and the Armed Forces.

5.1.2 An Equality Impact Assessment (INRA) is not required.

5.2 Financial 
5.2.1 The recommendations in this paper will not have a material impact on the Council Tax 

collected by the Council, and as the recommendation is to leave the non-relief discount at 
8.5% this is not considered significant.

5.3 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales
5.3.1 Information on the consultation is included within the report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All wards and communities.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 DWP – Department for Work & Pensions
7.2 HMRC – Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs
7.3 LCTRS - Local Council Tax Reduction Support Scheme
7.4 RTI – Real Time Information
7.5 UC – Universal Credit
7.6 UCDS - Universal Credit Data Sharing hub

Background papers:-

Lead Contact Officer

48



Name and Post: Adrian Mills, Strategic Manager ARP Billing and Benefits
Telephone Number: 07984 255437
Email: Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk

Key Decision: Yes / No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: None

49



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
EAST CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

EAST SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL
FENLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

WEST SUFFOLK DISTRICT COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

ANGLIA REVENUES AND BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP JOINT COMMITTEE

Held on Tuesday, 17 December 2019 at 11.00 am in the
Level 5 Meeting Room, Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, Thetford  IP24 1BT

PRESENT
Mrs S. Broughton (Chairman)
Mr D Ambrose Smith
Mr M. Cook

Mr P.D. Claussen (Substitute Member)
Mrs K. French (Substitute Member)

In Attendance
Jo Andrews - Strategic Manager (Revenues)
Sam Anthony - Head of HR & OD
Alison Chubbock - Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151 

Officer) (BDC)
Tom Darling-Fernley - Programme Manager (ARP).
Nick Khan - Strategic Director (East Suffolk)
Rachael Mann - Assistant Director (Resources & 

Performance)
Siobhan Martin - Head of Internal Audit
Adrian Mills - Strategic Manager (Billing & Benefits) ARP
Stuart Philpot - Strategic Manager (Support Services) ARP
Ian Smith - Finance Manager & S151 Officer (East 

Cambs)
Julie Britton - Democratic Services Officer

Action By
35/19 MINUTES (AGENDA ITEM 1) 

 (a) 11 June 2019  

The Minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2019 were agreed as a correct 
record.

 (b) 17 September 2019 - Notes  

The Notes of the meeting held on 17 September 2019 were noted.

36/19 APOLOGIES (AGENDA ITEM 2) 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Cowen and J French.  
Substitutes in attendance were Councillors Claussen and K French.

Apologies were also received from Paul Corney and Peter Catchpole.

37/19 URGENT BUSINESS (AGENDA ITEM 3) 

None.

38/19 DECLARATIONS (AGENDA ITEM 4) 

None declared.

50

Agenda Item 12



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
17 December 2019

2

Action By
39/19 GOVERNANCE AND REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS RELATING TO 

INTERNAL AUDIT (AGENDA ITEM 5) 

Siobhan Martin, the Head of Internal Audit (East Suffolk Council) provided 
Members with a detailed overview of the role of the internal audit, and 
provided clarity in respect of the responsibilities of the Operational 
Improvement Board and the Joint Committee in relation to the reporting 
arrangements provided by Internal Audit.

The Heads of Internal Audit at East Suffolk, Fenland and West Suffolk jointly 
provided the Internal Audit Service to the five partner councils and worked 
collaboratively when planning work to ensure efficient and effective reviews 
took place to support all stake holders.

The reporting arrangements were explained.

Councillor Ambrose-Smith asked about the external audit provision.  
Members were informed that the relationship between internal and external 
audit complimented each other.  The East of England used Ernst & Young 
LLP and regular meetings were held.  The S151 Officers and the Heads of 
Paid Service also had regular briefings with the External Auditors.

The report was otherwise noted.   

40/19 REVIEW OF THE ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP CONSTITUTION 
(AGENDA ITEM 6) 

Rachel Mann, the Assistant Director (Resources & Performance) for West 
Suffolk Council presented the report.

The report asked Members and recommended to each partner Authority to 
consider and approve the revised Partnership Agreement to have effect from 
the 1 April 2019.

The current Agreement had been in force for a number of years and many 
changes/updates to the document had been made.

The revised Agreement had been considered by each Partner’s Legal, 
Financial and Audit Teams to reflect the Councils merging in East and West 
Suffolk.  A further update had also been requested at the 17 September 2019 
Joint Committee meeting in relation to the quoracy of the Committee.  The 
quoracy had been amended to four Members unless the Chair in consultation 
with the Joint Committee felt that it would be appropriate for all five Members 
(or their substitute) to be present.  In this situation, the item would be deferred 
until the next meeting. 

It was:

RESOLVED that the revised Partnership Agreement be approved – to have 
effect from 1st April 2019; and

RECOMMEND to each Partner Authority’s Cabinet that:

1. the revised Agreement be approved; and
2. subject to the approval from each Partner Authority the revised 

Agreement be signed and sealed by each Council.

51



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
17 December 2019

3

Action By
41/19 PERFORMANCE REPORT AND SERVICE UPDATES (AGENDA ITEM 7) 

Stuart Philpot, the Strategic Manager (Support Services) presented the 
report.

Members were informed that all Partner Councils combined for 2019/20 for 
Business Rates and Council Tax collection were on target and the target for 
fraud and compliance for the year had been exceeded.

Breckland’s Council Tax collection was behind target by £230,173 due to the 
high level of refunds for this year, £609k compared to £475k at this point last 
year – an increase of £134k which had reduced collection.. Breckland also 
had an increase in the amount of pre-payments for the current financial year 
and the first summons for non-payment had been delayed one month by the 
Court which would have an effect.  The situation was being closely monitored.

Members were informed that whilst the Housing Benefit performance 
indicator had been exceeded and overachieved, this had been due to the 
downtime associated with the merger of East Suffolk and West Suffolk 
systems.  

Referring to East Suffolk Council Business Rates, the collection rates were 
behind target for the current financial year by £347k.  There had been £3.9m 
of backdated refunds as a result of reductions in rateable value.

As far as enforcement was concerned, the Enforcement Team continued to 
perform well and had collected almost £19m.  From July 2019, the Team had 
been taking cases from Norwich City Council with some good results.

The Anglia Revenues website design had been enhanced to be more 
transactional and as straight forward as possible for customers and was now 
showing a 10% increase in usage for Council Tax, Business Rates, Housing 
Benefit and Local Council Tax Reduction Schemes.

The Chairman mentioned the Better Customer Journeys Programme and 
asked if the website was going to be further improved.  Members were 
informed that ARP was currently working with Capita to make such 
improvements.  All partner Councils would need to be involved to make sure 
that the product was fit for purpose and make it an easier journey for the 
customer.  

Adrian Mills, the Strategic Manager for Billing & Benefits reported that Capita 
had now released version 2 of the address form which was in test to check 
enhancements that had been identified and implemented.

The Performance Report and Service updates were otherwise noted.

42/19 ARP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (AGENDA ITEM 8) 

Alison Chubbock, the Chief Accountant for Breckland Council presented the 
report.

The report highlighted the full year financial information against the budget for 
ARP.   The latest forecast at this stage of the year showed a small over 
spend of £34k (0.4%) for the whole of ARP.

52



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
17 December 2019

4

Action By
The funding held in the ICT Reserve had now started to be spent and income 
from Norwich City’s enforcement cases was now starting to come through 
and would increase accordingly.

The report recommended that the end of year variance be distributed 
between the partner authorities in the approved shares.  The shares for each 
partner had been highlighted on page 110 of the agenda pack.

The Chairman asked what had caused the over spend.  In response, the 
Chief Accountant advised that this had been due to the employment of 
agency staff but was hopeful that most of it would be ‘clawed’ back.

Councillor Ambrose-Smith mentioned the comments made on page 113 in 
relation to the reason behind the over spend.  Members were informed that 
this was one of the difficulties caused by setting the budget early.

RESOLVED that:

1. the report and appendix be noted; and

2. the final full year variance at 31 March 2020 be shared between the 
partner authorities in the approved shares.

43/19 WELFARE REFORM UPDATE (STANDING ITEM) (AGENDA ITEM 9) 

Adrian Mills the ARP Strategic Manager (Billing & Benefits) presented the 
report.

The Universal Credit section at paragraph 2.2.3 of the report was highlighted.  
DWP had announced a £10m Universal Credit Transition Fund to help 
vulnerable people but funding application details were not yet available. 

The outcome of the migration trial at Harrogate Job Centre was still awaited. 

Referring to the Welfare Benefit Uprating April 2020 new announcement at 
paragraph 3 of the report, Members were informed that the benefit rates 
would be increased from April 2020 by 1.7%, the State Pension would also 
be raised by 3.9%.

The Chairman asked if the CAB and what other charities would be entitled to 
a share of the £10m Universal Credit Transition Fund.  In response, the ARP 
Strategic Manager advised that the application process had not been notified 
but it was likely CAB and charities such as Food Banks as well as Local 
Authorities could apply.

Councillor Claussen asked how much funding it would mean for ARP.  
Members were informed that this would all be subject to how it was divided 
up; there were approximately 300 Councils, so small amounts locally, through 
the LGA, the Government could be lobbied to increase the pot.

The report was otherwise noted.

44/19 ARP STRATEGY REFRESH (AGENDA ITEM 10) 

Following introductions, Tom Darling Fernley, the new Programme Manager 
presented his report.

53



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
17 December 2019

5

Action By

Members were provided with a detailed overview of the work involved to 
develop coherent annual service delivery plans, change delivery plans and a 
target operating model that had led to a review of the Partnership’s strategic 
priorities that now included benefits, customer needs and development of 
staff.  

A strategy had been developed along with a Service Plan, details of the 
whole process that was followed could be found at Appendix C of the report.

The strategic themes at section 3.2.3 of the report were highlighted.

The Chairman was pleased to note that ‘customers’ were one of the top 
priorities.

Councillor Ambrose-Smith was concerned that none of the themes/priorities 
included the Department of Work & Pensions.  Members were informed that 
DWP would come within ‘relationships’.

Referring to Appendix D, Councillor Claussen had noticed that under 
‘colleagues’ agile working was mentioned that would, in his opinion, be a 
complete culture shift and asked where ARP was at in that journey.  The 
Strategic Manager (Support Services) explained that this would mean being 
able to work across all 4 sites and would be helpful for homeworking too. It 
was noted that this agile approach included management.

Councillor Claussen asked if this agile working would free up space at 
Breckland House.  Members were informed that the building would not be 
overloaded – there was desk space and hot desking would be available.

Councillor Cook asked where ARP was with its ‘digital by default’ service.  
The Programme Manager advised that ‘digital by default’ had the potential to 
free up a large amount of full-time posts as it would promote more self-
service.

In response to a question about timelines, Members were informed that 
Universal Credit automation was on track to be delivered by April/May 2020.  
The software was being tested and more elements could be added, subject to 
system capability.

RESOLVED that the mission, strategic themes and vision as set in the report 
and in Appendix D be approved.

45/19 THE ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP (ARP) SERVICE DELIVERY 
PLAN (AGENDA ITEM 11) 

In the absence of Paul Corney, the Head of ARP, Jo Andrews, the Strategic 
Manager for Revenues presented the report.

In accordance with the ARP Agreement a revised Service Delivery plan 
should be agreed by the Joint Committee by the end of December each year.

The last Service Delivery Plan had been agreed in December 2018 and the 
report provided Members with the progress/achievements that had been 
made since then (see section 2.1 of the report).  One improvement had been 
on call handling and performance had increased significantly in comparison to 

54



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
17 December 2019

6

Action By
the previous year due to new phone technology being introduced in March 
2019.  Another success had been the introduction of a generic role called a 
Council Tax Billing Officer; a more flexible resource that could be moved from 
Council Tax Support cases to billing as the workload demands.

The next Service Delivery Plan would incorporate the strategic themes for all 
partner Councils as discussed in the previous report.

The Risk Register that had been inadvertently omitted from the Agenda and 
had been circulated at the start of the meeting was discussed.  The one ‘red’ 
risk relating to income retained for Business Rates and Council tax was 
explained.  It was noted that the Court Hearing for the NHS claim had been 
held last month and although the outcome had been successful (the NHS 
was not classed as a charity); Appeals from hospitals could follow.

There was some discussion on historical outstanding Appeals.

The Chairman was disappointed to note the high staff turnover and the lack 
of basic training.  Members were informed that a shorter training programme 
was now in place to enable staff to become operational sooner.  The high 
staff turnover was in respect of all the temporary posts.

RESOLVED that:

 the progress on respect of the December 2018 Service Delivery Plan 
be noted; and

 the revised Service Delivery Plan and Risk Register be approved.

46/19 ARP JOINT COMMITTEE PARTNERSHIP BUDGET (AGENDA ITEM 12) 

Alison Chubbock, the Chief Accountant for Breckland Council presented the 
2020/21 budget for the whole of the Partnership.

It was explained that each partnership Council prepared and set its own 
budget.

Approval was now sought from the Joint Committee Members for the ARP 
budgets to be incorporated into the 5 Partners’ individual budgets for their 
own budget setting.

The budgets had been set using the same principles as previous years and 
included an efficiency target of £120k to be achieved from 2021-22 onwards.

Benefits payments and subsidies, court fee income and other grants specific 
to the individual authorities had not been included within the partnership 
budgets as these were the direct responsibility of the individual authorities.

The overall budget showed an increase of £450k compared to 2019-20. The 
reasons for this were explained at section 1.5 of the report.

Councillor Ambrose-Smith pointed out that the budget had increased overall 
by 4.8%.  He then highlighted the increase to the budget for each Partner 
Council.  For East Cambridgeshire this would mean an increase of 6.3% 
which was more than he was willing to support; however, he had been very 
encouraged by what he had heard.  

55



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
17 December 2019

7

Action By
The Chief Accountant explained that for some Councils, the increases were 
higher than others but this was due to how the Partnership contributions had 
been split.  Another reason for East Cambs percentage increase had been 
due to the drop in its enforcement cases.

Councillor Claussen reminded Members that East Cambs budget included a 
zero increase to its Council Tax. 

The recommendation was proposed and seconded, and following a vote, 4 in 
favour and 1 against, it was:

RESOLVED that the Partnership budget for 2020-21 at Appendix A of the 
report be approved.

47/19 JOINT COMMITTEE ARP BROCHURE (AGENDA ITEM 13) 

Stuart Philpot, the ARP Strategic Manager (Support) presented the report.  

It was noted that all suggestions provided at the last meeting had been 
incorporated into the brochure and Members were thanked for providing their 
photographs. 

Section 5 of the report in respect of costs was highlighted and it was further 
noted that only 250 copies of the brochure would be printed.  

The ARP brochure would be reviewed on a regular basis; there would be an 
on-line version in a PDF format as well as a link.

Councillor Cook was pleased with the brochure and asked for the link to be 
sent round to Members again.

RESOLVED that:

1. the new ARP Brochure be adopted for use by the Anglia Revenues 
Partnership to provide information to Members, new Joint Committee 
Members and new staff working as part of the ARP; and

2. the December version of the ARP Brochure be approved. 

48/19 FORTHCOMING ISSUES (STANDING ITEM) (AGENDA ITEM 14) 

Nothing to report.

49/19 NEXT MEETING (AGENDA ITEM 15) 

The arrangements for the next meeting on 24 March 2020 at 11am in Level 5 
meeting room, Thetford were noted.

It was further noted that the pre-briefing for Members of the Joint Committee 
would commence at 10am.

The meeting closed at 12.10 pm  

CHAIRMAN

56


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Charges for Pre-application planning enquiries
	9 Easement Valuation at Stanfield House, Swaffham
	Appendix 1 for Easement Valuation at Stanfield House, Swaffham
	Appendix 2 for Easement Valuation at Stanfield House, Swaffham

	10 Quarter 2 2019-20 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 2 2019-20 Performance Overview Repor, 19/12/2019 Overview and Scrutiny Commission
	Appendix 2 for Quarter 2 2019-20 Performance Overview Repor, 19/12/2019 Overview and Scrutiny Commission

	11 Review of the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (LCTRS) for 2020-21
	12 Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership
	Minutes


